
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LINDEN  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
LOCATION: LINDEN COMMUNITY CENTER, 105 MILL ST., LINDEN, MI 48451 

Thursday, January 22, 2026                                                                                 8:30 A.M. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
(A) Excuse Absent Member(s) 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

(A) Approve Minutes of the November 27, 2025 Regular Meeting 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (NON-AGENDA ITEMS ONLY) 
 Any person wishing to address the DDA Board on non-agenda items only are asked to state 
 their name and address for the record and limit their comments to five minutes, or ten minutes   
 if representing a group of persons. Opportunity will be given to address the DDA Board on 
 Agenda items as they are called on the Agenda. 
 

V. CORRESPONDENCE 
(A)  Planning Commission Annual Report 

 
VI. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

(A) Check Register 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARING/PRESENTATION 
 

VIII. DISCUSSION 
(A) Dementia-Friendly Communities Workshop  

 
IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
X. NEW BUSINESS 

(A) Election of Officers 
(B) 2025 Annual Report 
(C) DDA Façade Grant Re-Application & Disbursement Request 

 
XI. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

 
XII. MANAGERS REPORT 

 
XIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS & REPORTS 

 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2026 AT 8:30 A.M. 



 

CITY OF LINDEN 
MEETING MINUTES  

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING 
 
Thursday, November 20, 2025                                                              8:30 A.M. 
CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Linden Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Board was called to 
order at 8:30 a.m. by Chairperson Jeanine Sapelak. The meeting was held within the Linden 
Community Center, located at 105 Mill Street Linden, Michigan 48451. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:  Tod Fisher, Brandon Raudebaugh, Marta Wright, Keri Burns, Ryan McDonald, Jeanine 
Sapelak, Greg Jones 
Absent: Michelle Robins, Denise Miller 
Others Present: Ellen Glass, City Manager; Tessa Sweeney, Director of Senior Services and 
Community Engagement; Nicole Weissenborn, Deputy Clerk 
 Excused Absence Member(s) 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

(A) Approve Minutes of the October 23, 2025 Regular Meeting 
Motion by Wright, second by Jones to approve minutes of the October 23, 2025 Meeting.  Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS – Non-Agenda Items Only 
None. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 

(A) Dementia Friendly Communities Program 
Wright explained that it was approved by City Council and training will be conducted at the Grow 
Linden meeting in January.   
 
Sapelak inquired with Sweeney about Choice One partnering with Loose in regards to Fraud 
Awareness training. 
 
Robins entered meeting at 8:32. 
 

(B) Houndstooth & Harlequin Ribbon Cutting 
Sweeney explained that there is a City Sponsored Ribbon Cutting today. 
 

(C) 2026 Meeting Schedule 
Sweeney reviewed the correspondence with board members advising that it has been approved by 
council. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 

(A) Check Register 
Wright reviewed budget items to board members.  Glass answered questions and inquiries regarding 
the budget to board members.   
 
McDonald advised that he used the EV Charger when he had a rental and explained the billing 
information and charging process to board members.   
 



 

Sweeney and Glass reviewed the Behind Your Design A-Frame to board members explaining that the 
QR code will show the DDA business district on the City Website. 
 
Motion by Fisher, second by Raudebaugh to approve the bills in the amount of $ 3,356.05. Roll call. 
Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Ayes: Jones, Raudebaugh, MacDonald, Fisher, Robins, Wright, Burns, Sapelak 
Nays: None 
Absent: Miller 
 
PUBLIC HEARING/PRESENTATION 
None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(A) Social Media 
Sweeney reviewed the social media correspondence and clarified the data with board members. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

(A) DDA Recognition 
Sapelak provided and presented Glass an award in regards for her hard work regarding the City’s 
Michigan Economic Redevelopment Ready Communities Program, grants and funding opportunities, 
reviewing policies and procedures along with city operations.   
 
Community Engagement Report 
Sweeney discussed the following items: 

- Parking emails sent to businesses, parking maps updated on Google, banners displaying 
parking areas 

- MTA Shuttle and Trolley Services 
- Shop Hop 
- Crosswalk Signs by City Hall 
- Networking at Noon 
- Holiday Window Painting 
- Christmas tree decorating 
- Yellow building has been sent a letter by Wade-Trim 

 
Glass advised that police are reviewing parking trends. 
 
XI. MANAGER'S REPORT 
Glass provided a verbal update on the following items: 

- Safe Routes to School 
- Mill Building 
- LAFF Pathway and Ribbon Cutting 
- Loose Center Grant Money and Annex update 
- Potential concession trailer 
- Housing Readiness Zoning - Redevelopment Ready Communities Certification 
- Chicken and Deer ordinances 
- CBG Funding for amphitheater with ADA accommodations 

 
Robins inquired about Grants for DDA.  Glass addressed. 

 
 



 

Sapelak explained that the Evan’s building is for sale.   
 
Glass stated that she would not have been able to accomplish as much as she did in such a short 
period of time without the support of the DDA and City staff. She expressed her sincere gratitude and 
noted that the recognition is very meaningful to her. 
 
Board members discussed their gratitude and explained that Linden has changed so much within a 
few years and can see the results.       

 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
Wright addressed the Mill Building renovations that she sees on a daily basis. 
 
Raudebaugh inquired about the Christmas trees at the Mills.  Sweeney addressed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Sapelak shared the date and time of the next meeting is January 23, 2026 at 8:30 a.m. The meeting 
was adjourned by Chairperson Sapelak at 9:17 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
________________________________   Approved: _____________ 
Nicole Weissenborn, Deputy Clerk 



132 E. Broad Street • Linden, MI 48451 • P.O. Box 507 
Phone: (810) 735-7980 • Fax: (810) 735-4793 

1 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Mayor Armstrong and City Council Members 

City of Linden Planning Commission 

December 5, 2025

2025 Planning Commission Annual Report 

The City of Linden Planning Commission is pleased to provide this Annual Report of its activities 
for calendar year 2025. This report is being submitted in compliance with Section 19 of the 
Planning Enabling Act, Public Act 33 of 2008, as amended. The Act states that:  A planning 
commission shall make an annual written report to the legislative body concerning its operations 
and the status of planning activities, including recommendations regarding actions by the 
legislative body related to planning and development. 

The following is a summary of the Planning Commission’s activities in 2025: 

Meetings: 
• January 3, 2025 Regular Meeting
• February 3, 2025 Regular Meeting
• April 7, 2025 Regular Meeting
• May 5, 2025 Regular Meeting
• July 7, 2025 Regular Meeting
• August 4, 2025 Regular Meeting
• September 2, 2025 Regular Meeting
• October 6, 2025 Regular Meeting
• December 11, 2025 Special Meeting

Administrative Site Plans Approved 
• 699 West Broad Street (Butch’s Barber Shop) – New personal service use
• 1007 North Bridge Street (AT&T Mobility) – Equipment upgrades at the existing wireless

tower
• 918 North Bridge Street (Houndstooth and Harlequin) – New retail store
• 274 Rockway Drive (Home Health Physical Therapy) – New home occupation

Preliminary Site Plans Approved 
• 201 North Main Street – Linden Mills Building Improvements
• 208 Lindenwood Drive – New home occupation/sale of weapons



 

2 

Final Site Plans Approved 
• 201 North Main Street – Linden Mills Building Improvements 
• Forest Ridge Estates – Recommended approval of the Final PUD Plan (later approved by 

City Council) 
 
Special Land Uses Approved 

• 208 Lindenwood Drive – New home occupation/sale of weapons 
• 14479 Ripley Road – New group day care home 

 
Rezonings Approved 

• 210 Oak Street Conditional Rezoning – Recommended approval to City Council (pending 
decision by City Council) 

 
Zoning Amendments 

• Recommended approval of Planning Commission procedures amendments (later 
adopted by City Council) 

• Recommended approval of exterior lighting amendments (later adopted by City Council) 
• Recommended approval of a comprehensive amendments package pertaining to 

housing (pending decision by City Council) 
 
In addition to the items listed above, the January 2025 meeting featured a mini-training session 
for new Planning Commission members.  
 
In 2026, members of the Planning Commission will be notified of and may consider attending 
planning and zoning related training opportunities. Various training opportunities are available 
through organizations such as the Michigan Municipal League and the Michigan Association of 
Planning.  

 
The Planning Commission welcomes any thoughts that the City Council may have related to the 
Commission’s proposed 2026 work plan. If you would like the Planning Commission to address 
any particular topics, please let us know. 
 
 
cc: Zoning Board of Appeals 

Downtown Development Authority 
Historic District Commission 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF LINDEN
CHECK DATE 11/18/2025 - 01/20/2026

 BANK CODE: DDASB - DDA-SB (7900) - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank DDASB DDA-SB (7900)
12/05/2025 3589 CHAPPLE ELECTRIC SERVICES  LL INSTALL CIRCUITS 14,022.50 
12/05/2025 3590 CHASE CARD SERVICE DDA CHARGES 10.14.25-11.12.25 37.00 
12/05/2025 3591 LINDEN LIONS 820.00 
12/12/2025 3592 CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION 448.54 
12/12/2025 3593 LINDEN LIONS 11 FOOT FRASER FIR TREE 300.00 
12/12/2025 3594 SOUTHERN LAKES PARKS SUMMER CONCERTS LINDEN 2026 14,408.00 
12/19/2025 3595 DORNBOS SIGN, INC REISSUE CK# 3571 SIGNS 1,510.00 
12/19/2025 3596 ACE HARDWARE DDA CHARGES NOV 2025 319.28 
12/19/2025 3597 BLUE CARE NETWORK EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS JAN 2026 432.50 
12/19/2025 3598 DELTA DENTAL EMPLOYEE DENTAL JAN 2026 46.60 
01/07/2026 3599 CHASE CARD SERVICE DDA CHARGES 11.13.25-12.11.25 2,187.65 
01/16/2026 3600 CONSUMERS ENERGY VEHICLE CHARGING STATION  DEC 2025 423.73 
01/16/2026 3601 ACE HARDWARE DDA EXPENSES DEC 2025 109.52 

DDASB TOTALS:

Total of 13 Checks: 35,065.32 
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00 
Total of 13 Disbursements: 35,065.32 

01/20/2026 03:29 PM Page: 1/1

TOTAL: $35,065.32

Christmas Trees









kkanyak
Rectangle









132 E. Broad Street • Linden, MI 48451 • P.O. Box 507 • Phone: (810) 735-7980 • www.lindenmi.us 

TO:  Mayor Armstrong & City Council Members 
FROM:    City of Linden Downtown Development Authority 
RE: 2025 Downtown Development Authority Annual Report 

The City of Linden Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Board is pleased to present its 
Annual Report summarizing activities, investments, and accomplishments for the 2025 
calendar year. The DDA continued its mission to enhance the vitality, appearance, and 
economic health of Downtown Linden through capital improvements, business support, 
marketing, and community partnerships. 

Presentations: 
The DDA hosted the following presentations in 2025: 

• Informational Meetings were held in April and October (PA 57 of 2018 Compliance).
During these meetings, Staff and Board Members presented on the goals and
achievements of the Board, as well as projects planned or underway.

Capital Improvements: 
Millpond Walkway Revitalization 
In 2025, the DDA completed a major improvement to the Millpond area with the revitalization 
of the walkway. This project included the installation of a new stamped concrete walkway 
along with upgraded electrical infrastructure to better support events, lighting, and future 
enhancements. This investment further strengthens the Millpond as a signature gathering space 
and community destination.  

Downtown Parking Signage 
Updated parking signage were installed throughout the downtown district to improve 
wayfinding, clarify parking options, and enhance accessibility for residents and visitors. 

Business Support & Development 
New Businesses and Chamber Memberships 

The DDA supported several businesses with chamber memberships in 2025, including: 
• Evers & Ollie
• Jack’s Record Stache
• Mae Designs XO
• Wylde Child

A DDA-sponsored ribbon cutting was also held for Houndstooth & Harlequin, celebrating its 
opening and contribution to the Linden business community. 



 

Marketing & Promotions 
Expanded Downtown Marketing 

The DDA invested in additional marketing efforts throughout 2025 to bring increased 
attention to downtown businesses, particularly during community events and Music by 
the Mill. These efforts included enhanced promotions, branding, and outreach designed 
to drive foot traffic and business awareness. 

 
Social Media Growth 

The DDA increased its social media presence to better highlight downtown businesses, 
events, and initiatives. This expanded digital outreach helped promote local shopping, 
dining, and entertainment while strengthening the overall downtown brand. Additionally, 
the DDA participated in the Michigan Downtown Association Social Media Takeover, 
increasing the reach and awareness of Linden, Michigan across a broader statewide 
audience. 

 
Events & Programming 
Music by the Mill 

The DDA continued its support of Music by the Mill, which remains a popular 
community event drawing residents and visitors into the downtown area. 

 
Christmas Tree Program 

A new Christmas Tree Program was launched in 2025, allowing downtown businesses to 
participate by decorating trees. This program added a festive and creative way for 
businesses to promote themselves while enhancing the holiday atmosphere downtown. 

 
Basket Giveaways & Shop Local Initiatives 

To encourage local shopping and downtown visitation, the DDA hosted basket 
giveaways during Downtown Day and Small Business Saturday. Visitors who shopped 
locally were entered into giveaways, helping attract new patrons to downtown 
businesses. Free DDA-branded tote bags were also provided for businesses to distribute 
on these days, reinforcing the Shop Local message. 

 
Restaurant Week Participation 

Few local restaurants participated in Restaurant Week in partnership with neighboring 
communities, promoting dining in Linden and strengthening collaboration. 

 
Sponsorships & Community Support 
Throughout 2025, the DDA remained committed to supporting community organizations and 

events, including: 
• Sponsorship of Happening in Linden 
• Donation to the American Legion in support of community programming 

These contributions reflect the DDA’s ongoing commitment to community partnerships. 
 
The DDA will continue to prioritize capital improvements, business support, marketing, and 
community partnerships in 2026. By investing in infrastructure, events, and local businesses, 
the Board remains focused on strengthening Downtown Linden as a vibrant, welcoming 
destination for residents, visitors, and entrepreneurs. As always —support our local 
businesses! 



CITY OF LINDEN 
DDA AGENDA MEMO 

To:           DDA Board of Directors  
From:           Kristyn Kanyak, City Clerk 
Submitted:  January 20, 2026 
Subject:        Façade Grant Application/Disbursement 106 South Bridge St. 

INTRODUCTION/HISTORY/EXPLANATION OF TOPIC 
During the July 25, 2024 meeting, the DDA Board approved a façade grant application from Robert and Sarah 
Pagel, owners of 106 South Bridge Street, with various exterior improvements. The applicants also received 
approval from the Linden Historic District Commission (HDC). The approved work was completed by the one-
year mark, in accordance with the DDA Façade Grant Program.  

Additionally, though the project was valued at/over $15,000+, City Staff is requesting the DDA Board consider 
waiving of the sealed drawing requirement submission, as part of the Façade Grant Program. The reason being, a 
building permit is not required for window replacements within the city, and therefore, window replacement does 
not necessitate sealed drawings. Our Building Official did inspect the windows and confirmed approval of the 
project. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Review, discuss, and consider disbursement of approved façade grant funds for the completed grant work scope 
received. This is the DDA Board’s first Façade Grant Application received in the budget year. To date, no additional 
façade grant funds have been issued, nor disbursed.  

MOTION 
Motion to (waive/not waive) the sealed drawings submission requirement and (approve/deny) disbursement of 
DDA Façade Grant Program funds for completed grant work scope, in the amount of $5,000 for 106 Bridge Street. 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS ATTACHED: 

I CONCUR:____________________________________________ 
ELLEN R. GLASS, CITY MANAGER  

MEETING DATE: JANUARY 22, 2026 AGENDA TOPIC: Façade Grant: 106 South Bridge St. 

 

   







_,.. 

Fa�ade Grant Program Application 

Applicant Name: ____.(?.._o-=---b.....__J2.."""'("--t-'--...;.�-C\.....;;....8)_,_
Q.. __ \ ____________ _ 

1��0, N, ��$" Ro. �", M\ Y�43oApplicant Address: 

Applicant Phone Number: ----:  _________ _ 

Email:  : _________ _ 
  

Building Address where Fa�ade Improvement will be Completed: 

\Db �I �c��c-_}e. tor Ltt\d\tY\ N\\

Names of all Owners on Title of Property: (All owners must sign appfication)

@.0 'o� tr rr S� . .f o.. h <? � '3 � \

Property Tax Parcel ID Number: b\-�Q..'5S l- OS r; Estimated Project cost: $6(),COQ. OO

Proposed Project Start Date: f\S:£\ Q Proposed Project Completion Date: \OJ\ / ,ao ��

Business(es) Currently Housed in Building: \ c,.g. Ct QUM GP.,( o..0:f<. 0 �.Q.{�( '�

�.)\u�hot\ Along with this completed application form, the applicant shall include the following: 
1) Proof of property ownership or lease hold interest
2) Written summary of proposed improvements
3) Photos of the existing building conditions and a sketch of the proposed improvements

After review of your application by the City Planner, the applicant shall provide the followng: 
4) Design/construction drawings (must be signed and sealed if project is valued at more than $15,000)
5} Detailed cost estimate from at least 3 bidders
6) Other information which may assist the DOA in making their selection

The undersigned affirms that the information provided in this application is true and complete to the best of their knowledge. The applicant fur-
• g of �de program and agrees to abide by the terms and conditions outlined in the application packet.

ate: l-Vi� .. �

Date: L -) d.� )._ b
State of Michigan, County of Genesee 
On this �day of� A.O., 20.al,before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly sworn, stated that he/she has 
read the foregoing application for Facade Grant Program, by him/her signed, and know the contents thereof, and that the same is true of his/ 
her own knowledge, except as to the matters therein stated to be upon information and belief and so as to those matters he/she believes·it to be
true. 

1) 
Notary Puhl , Genesee County, Michigan

�

My Commission Expires: 

Please Note: Only com�twl appl/cotlons with all �ulml documentation will be consllkml for possible gront funding. 

MEGINM.VONG 
NOTARV PUBUC,STATE OF Ml 

COUNTY OF �lON 
MY COMMISSION EXPRS Mly 22. 'JJJ27 
ACTING IN COUNTY OF '-1t-...e.5oL

All other forms and documents /Dr this grant prof«t may be signed by the applicant and will not iWjulrT additional oWMrs' slgnature(s}. 








































